
 
 
                                                                    
 
 
 
 
                                                                              PARK AND RECREATION BOARD AGENDA  

MONDAY MARCH 6, 2022 
7:00 PM 

BOARD ROOM, MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 210 COTTONWOOD AVENUE 
Call to Order 

 
Public comments for those items not included on this agenda: (Please be advised the Park and Recreation Board will 
receive information from the public for a three-minute time period per person with time extensions per the Park and 
Recreation Chairperson’s discretion. Be it further advised that there may be limited discussion on the information received, 
however, no action will be taken under public comments.)   

 
1. Consideration of a motion to approve the Park and Recreation minutes of the Feb. 6 2022, meeting. 

 
Recreation –  

2. Discussion and possible consideration on Special Event for Paws in the Park, Emma Loves Dogs, August 
26th, 2023. 

3. Discussion and possible consideration of Special Event for Hometown Celebration, June 30th-July 2nd, 
2023. 

 
Public Works –  

4. Discussion and consideration of Diamond Softball Tournament at Bark River Branden Frank. 
5. Discussion and possible consideration for a Ragnar Run at Centennial Park May 12th – May 13th, 2023, 

Shane Asbury. 
6. Update on Nixon Construction timeline. 
 

 
              Other items for consideration 
 

7. Announcements:  It is not contemplated that these matters will be discussed or acted upon and may 
include items for future consideration.  The following individuals may provide announcements:  Park and 
Recreation Board members or other Village Staff members. 

 
 

8. Adjourn 
Deidre Bushéy 
Deputy Clerk 
 

Notice:  Please note that upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through 
appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, contact Darlene Igl, Village Clerk, at (262)367-
2714.  The Municipal Building is handicap accessible.  
Individuals attending public meetings will be required to maintain appropriate social distancing, (i.e., maintain a 6-foot distance) and 
be free of symptoms related to COVID-19. 



PARK AND RECREATION BOARD MINUTES 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2022 

7:00 PM 
BOARD ROOM, MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 210 COTTONWOOD AVENUE 

 
Present:            Tim Hallquist, Shaunta’ de Boer, Rick Conner, Randy Ferrell, Craig Eisenhut, Kathy Van    
                            Thiel and Nick Miller. 
Excused:             Dave Felkner 
Others:              Erin Guenterberg, Kristina Kleinschmidt, Sara Rennekamp, Tom Jenson and 
                            Leo Jungbluth. 
 
7:00 PM         Call to Order 
                          
     Public comments for those items not included on this agenda: (Please be advised the Park and  
      Recreation Board will receive information from the public for a three-minute time period per person  
      with time extensions per the Park and Recreation Chairperson’s discretion. Be it further advised that  
      there may be limited discussion on the information received, however, no action will be taken under  
      public comments.) 
     No public comments. 
 
1.  Discussion and possible consideration to approve the December 5 2022, Park, and Recreation 

meeting minutes. 
 
 Motion (Ferrell/de Boer) to approve the Park and Recreation minutes of December 5, 2022.  Carried 
(7-0).  
 

Recreation -  
2. Discussion and possible consideration for a Special Event Hartland Kids Day on July 26, 2023, Erin 

Guentenberg- 
Erin Guenterberg was present to explain this year’s Hartland Kids Day.  She said this will be the 11th 
annual Hartland Kids Day, there will be up to 100 vendors and 5-7 food vendors.   
Hallquist had 1 complaint with a port-a-potty last year having a vendors only sign on it and 
requested that another port-a potty be added or remove the sign from the port-a-potty. Connor 
asked how many vendors complained and Ms. Guentenberg said there was a few the previous year. 
Jungbluth brought up an issue with the pickleball court, with people not wanting to leave the court 
once vendors showed to use the space and the courts had been reserved for the event.  It was 
suggested if it happens again this year, to make a call to Rennekamp and she will contact PD.  
Jungbluth said with construction taking place this summer, part of the tennis court will be 
potentially removed.  He said to make sure the dumpster is picked up due to construction and the 
parking lot should be closed off at 6 a.m. or the night before.  Ms. Guentenberg said she did reach 
out to the Police Dept about the no parking signs and there will be a shuttle into the park from Lake 
Country Lutheran. 
 



PARK BOARD MINUTES 
MONDAY FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
7:00 PM 
PAGE 2 

Motion (Conner/ Miller) to approve the Special Event for Hartland Kids Day on July 26, 2023.  
Carried (6-0). 

 
3. Discussion and possible consideration for a Special Event by Wisconsin Athletic Club, Goat    
 Yoga in Nixon Park June 4th or June 11th, 2023. 
Kristina from the Wisconsin Athletic Club was present to explain the event.  She said they work with 
Honey Dew Farms will be providing little baby goats. She said they come in, do a quick set up, and 
they bring the goats in dog kennels.  She said once they have the snow fencing up in an area and 
know it is secure then they bring the goats in, and the goats will be restricted to that area.  There 
are 4-5 handlers to make sure the goats don’t get out.  She said it will be about an hour of time.  
Rennekamp said she has contacted Slinger municipality that has run this same event with success.  
She said they do a 2 to 1 ratio and the goats are miniature Nigerian goats and they are 6 months or 
younger.  Rennekamp said at that age they are eating or chewing on grass as they are too small.  She 
went on to say if they do have accidents during that time, it is very small pellets and they do clean it 
up if it is on a yoga mat or a person otherwise it is considered fertilizer.  She said during a rain event 
the goats would be put on concrete the Farm provides an umbrella insurance coverage.  Hallquist 
asked if they are wanting a rain date since they supplied 2 dates and Kristina said no, they were just 
supplying 2 dates in case there was something going on, on one of those dates.  Rennekamp said 
she suggested east of the t-ball field at Nixon Park.  Miller asked if there are any age restrictions and 
Kristina said she didn’t think there was an age restriction, but she would have to check.  Van Thiel 
asked the price of the event and Kristina said normally it is $20 for members and $25 for non-
members.  Rennekamp mentioned all participants have a waiver they have to sign also.   

 
      Motion (Miller/Eisenhut) to approve the Special Event for Wisconsin Athletic Club Goat Yoga at Nixon   

Park. Carried (7-0). 
 
4.  Discussion on Food Vendor Fees in the Park- 

Recreation Director Rennekamp said there is an event coming up and there is a gray area, so she 
wanted to bring it up for clarity for her and staff.  She said it is for the Bark River Bash and vendors 
who sell pre-packaged food like cookies or pastries.  She said there is a window that is unclear of who 
counts as a vendor and who counts as a food vendor.  Hallquist said if they are making a profit then 
they should be charged a fee.  Rennekamp read the food vendor description.   
She said the woman who makes cookies out of her home and her home is in Hartland.  Rennekamp 
said what about the person that sells herbs or dip mixes.  Brief discussion on the difference.  
“Overlapping conversations”. 
Rennekamp said she wanted to be black and white clear on it and the way she would like to present 
it is everyone pays a $75 fee unless they fall into one of this categories and they have to come and 
present it anyways if they want to ask for it to be waived.  Hallquist suggested emailing the policy to 
them and Rennekamp said.   
 

5. Discussion on T-Ball- 
Rennekamp went over the layout of the T-ball season. 



PARK BOARD MINUTES 
MONDAY FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
7:00 PM 
PAGE 3 

She said they are reserving the Bark River Field at the end of the season for an all-stars game on July 
15th, plus they will be doing a dockhounds game.  She said so far there are 84 kids registered and 
there are 300 spots.   
 

6. Discussion on Hometown Celebration- 
Rennekamp said the theme this year is Unity.  She said Bella Cain & Stetson & Lace have been signed 
to play that weekend.  She said she is planning on passing food off to non-profits in Hartland.   
She said she is looking for sponsors and is currently at $6,600,00.    
“Overlapping talking”. 
 It will be held on the last weekend in June and the dates are June 30th, July 1st, and July 2nd.  Eisenhut 
commented that he would like the car show to come back in on Saturday morning and Hallquist said 
he would like to see the bed races come back. 
 

Public Works Items-    
 
7.  Discussion on hunting in the parks-  

 
Jungbluth said in the packet is an example of what the Town of Delafield does and their rules.  
Eisenhut said he talked to Chief Misko about this and that it is way too involved to run a program like 
this.  He said he sent it to Felkner just to show what others are doing.  He said this is something that 
can be referred to if there is a property and that someone can be selected by him or the board or in 
charge of.  Hallquist asked so who do you want to hunt the land.  He said it should be a small team 
assigned to certain areas, but it shouldn’t be for the public to come in and apply for.   He said it would 
be a hand-picked situation.  Eisenhut said we only have 2 locations, but it would help people’s trees 
and cars etc.  He said private property can be hunted by archery but the Village’s land they should be 
hand selected by our board.   
Jungbluth said Felkner said let them talk about it and he would be back next week.  He said 
personally he doesn’t know how you will be able to hand pick people because someone may be 
upset, they weren’t picked.  He said there are several Village Board members on the Park Board, and 
they will take the brunt.    Eisenhut said a lottery could be done.  The comment was made that you 
can’t have people hunting all over the Village.  Eisenhut said if you can do it legally in the parameters 
that the state has already put in place, and you have the property to support it legally you can do it.   
He said if you have 5 acres in your back yard, legally you can do it, you have to follow the rules.  
Jungbluth said he thinks there is more to talk about.  The comment was made about the liability too if 
something goes wrong.  Eisenhut said there is a law in the state of Wisconsin, you already omitted 
liability if you voluntarily do something you are allowed to do.  He said you take personal 
responsibility for your own actions in the State of Wisconsin, so it’s not an area that Hartland can get 
sued for if someone gets hurt falling out of a tree stand.  He said he can get that law for you.  
Hallquist asked what if a hiker gets shot because he didn’t read the sign.  Eisenhut said no, he didn’t 
think about that.  Jungbluth said something like that did happen in Northern Wisconsin.  Hallquist 
said we are just looking at all the liabilities involved and will have to run this by legal.  The question 
was asked where he was looking at this taking place and he said up by Penbrook Park.  Hallquist 
commented they have had 1 person come to the Village Board meetings to complain about the deer 
and you had requested it so that is 2 people.  Hallquist said in his opinion he doesn’t think it warrants 



PARK BOARD MINUTES 
MONDAY FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
7:00 PM 
PAGE 4 

going any further and he has other concerns which he can bring up at another time.  Hallquist asked 
if DNR has some preventative measures that they provide.  Eisenhut said they will provide as many 
tags as we want and Hallquist said no he meant is the only option is to kill and Eisenhut said yes.  
Eisenhut said it is something to consider and the deer are a nuisance and there are a lot more 
complaints than just the 2.  He also said it should go to the board for private property owners.  
(inaudible).  Miller said he thinks there aren’t more complaints because people don’t think it will help 
or they didn’t know it was an option.    Miller said he has dealt with the deer in his yard, and it is 
frustrating.  He thinks it is an issue from the people he has talked to. 
Hallquist asked if we can check with legal and Jungbluth said we can talk to Felkner next week when 
he is back.  The question was asked what time of year this would be open.  He said DNR only allows it 
during the season so that is Sept – Jan.  and they have to have a hunting license.  There was brief 
discussion on using a nuisance tag vs a hunting tag. 
Hallquist will talk to Felker next week about the liability and see what has to be done yet. 

 
Other items for consideration-    

 
8. Announcements: It is not completed that these matters will be discussed or acted upon and may 

include items for future consideration. The following individuals may provide announcements: 
Park and Recreation Board members or other Village Staff members. 

 
Hallquist asked for a tentative schedule for construction at Nixon Park. 
Playground equipment for Nixon is ordered. 
Centennial playground could be delivered in Feb. and installed in May. 
Ice Rink will be going up soon. 
Update on Ice Rink Sponsors. 

 
9. Adjourn- 
Motion (Eisenhut/de Boer) to adjourn. Carried (6-0).  
Meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted By Recording Secretary,  
Deidre Bushey - Deputy Clerk 



































































104 Key: Chute Toilets

Shift Start End Cones & Tape Parking

Van's Path Volunteer

Runner's Path

3

C Radioing incoming runner to volunteer at chute, assist in stopping outgoing runners until traffic is clear. Runner safety takes priority over calling team numbers 1

OTHER DETAIL NOTES

PORT-A-POTTIE PLACEMENT

PRIVATE PROPERTY CONCERNS

Night Time Hours

N55 W29505 County Hwy K. Hartland, WI 53029

(GPS: 43.119387. -88.335446)
7:00 PM- 6:00 AM

Exchange 22 Park

Centennial Park
Venue 

Contact: 

Location: 

Max Parking Space Volunteer Shift Time

Peak Parking Needs

Peak Time 

Overview

Shift 1

Overview Notes

CHUTE PLACEMENT

A

Manage Chute, cross team off team list,  Make sure runners do not leave chute without nighttime gear during the appropriate hours.

1

PARKING INSTRUCTIONS

TRAFFIC CONCERNS

VAN/RUNNER FLOW

B 1

Manage parking flow, when slow, manage toilets & clean up exchange

Volunteer Duties

A

A

B

C



RAGNAR RELAY GREAT MIDWEST 2023 

 

1.1 Event Description: 

The Ragnar Relay Great Midwest is a 200-mile running relay, consisting of 36 relay legs, stretching from 
Waukegan to Madison taking place on May 12-13, 2023. Teams consist of 12 runners. During the relay, 
each team member runs three legs.  Relay legs typically range between 3-8 miles and vary in difficulty.  

Each team is responsible for providing two support vehicles, with six runners in each vehicle. The first 
vehicle will drop off the first runner at the start, and then proceed to the first exchange point.  At the 
first exchange, the vehicle will drop off the second runner and pick up the first runner when that 
runner’s leg is complete. Teams will repeat this pattern for six legs until they hand off to their second 
vehicle. This leapfrogging pattern will continue all the way to the finish line.  

The event is sponsored and managed by Ragnar Events, LLC.  Ragnar Events presented its first event, the 
Ragnar Relay Wasatch Back, in Utah USA in 2004. The Ragnar Relay Series, now consisting of 27 events, 
is the largest series of overnight relays in the world.  For more information, see www.runragnar.com.  

These overnight relays benefit both participants and the communities where they are presented.  
Participants have been unfailingly enthusiastic about their experiences.  There are always a wide variety 
of human interest stories associated with these events.  These range from the experienced runner 
finding special meaning through participation in a running event as a member of a team;  to the first-
time runner who participates at the urging of a friend and discovers previously unknown abilities and a 
love for running;  to families, businesses, old friends and other groups who enhance their relationships 
as they individually and collectively test their limits;  to teams who simply run for a cause, whether in 
honor of a deceased friend or relative, or to raise money for local charities or another charity of special 
importance to the team.  Communities directly benefit economically from money spent by participants 
for food, lodging and other services.  

  1.2 Ragnar Events Contact Information 

Ragnar Event’s website: www.runragnar.com  
 
The organization is located at:  
5570 W 1730 S, Suite 1000 Salt Lake City, UT 84104 
 
 
Race Director:  
Shane A. Asbury  
5570 W 1730 S, Suite 1000 Salt Lake City, UT 84104 
512-400-8485 
sasbury@runragnar.com 

http://www.runragnar.com/
mailto:sasbury@runragnar.com


Volunteer Coordinator: 
Lezhai Gulbransen 
Volunteer and Community Engagement Guru 

 
5570 W 1730 S., Suite 1000 

Salt Lake City, UT 84104 
208.403.1705 
lgulbransen@runragnar.com 
www.runragnar.com  

 
 
1.3    Exchange points  

Teams congregate at exchanges to wait for and send off runners.  Exchanges are at locations where 
there is adequate parking to minimize impact on through traffic.   Those locations include churches, 
schools, parks, and small businesses.  Ragnar Events is in the process of obtaining permission from the 
various locations for the use of exchanges. Each exchange point will consist of portable toilets, an 
exchange chute which consist of 4 delineator cones and caution tape, and will be staffed by our 
volunteers. See picture below.  

Image of exchange chute:  

  

1.4 Proposed Runner Route Details: 

The Ragnar Relay will start in Waukegan on May 12, 2023. Start times will be staggered, beginning at 
5:00 AM and will continue every hour on the hour until 2:00PM.  The objective for the staggered start 
time is to spread the participants out so that the impact on local traffic will be minimal and to avoid 
large groups of runners clustering together.  

Runners are required to obey all traffic laws and we instruct them to use the sidewalk when available. It 
is mandatory for participants to wear reflective vests with a tail light/ butt light and holding a flashlight 
or headlamp if their legs start after 8:00 PM and begin before 7:00 AM.  

1.5 Safety and Emergencies 

mailto:lgulbransen@runragnar.com
https://www.runragnar.com/


Runner safety is of foremost concern.  All teams are provided a Race Bible that includes a detailed 
course description and event rules.  All runners sign waivers where they acknowledge that the course 
includes areas where there may be traffic congestion and that they must obey race rules, which require 
observance of all applicable traffic rules and regulations.  

Each team must have at least two reflective vests and two flashlights. These must be presented at the 
time that the team checks in. Runners starting their legs after 8:00 pm and before 7:00 am must be 
wearing a reflective vest as well as a back LED light, and holding a flashlight or headlamp. Additionally, 
any team-member spectator must wear a reflective vest during these hours when outside their vehicle 
on public roads.  

Runners are also told to contact 6661-Ragnar1 for any concerns or problems out on the course. This is a 
phone number that sends them to our Race Command. During the race, a Ragnar Staff member is 
operating Race Command. They will dispatch staff members to handle all issues such as lost runners or 
missing directional signs, and answer general question about the course. In case of emergency all 
runners and staff will call 911, then contact our Race Command number (Ragnar1661) to let race staff 
know of the emergency.   

We will have 8-12 Ragnar staff on the course at all times monitoring the race. Each person is trained on 
Ragnar Safety and emergency procedures. They are also trained on the access points of the trail system 
and have maps of the entire course.  

1.6 Volunteers  

It is mandatory for participation in the event that each team provides (3) volunteers.  These volunteers 
are sent a race packet prior to the race with instructions about their shift, gear, training, rules, etc. All 
volunteer locations and shifts are pre-determined to the event. Volunteers working at an exchange 
point are in charge of trash and clean up. Ragnar also contracts with local groups and charities to 
provide volunteers in exchange for donations. Referrals always welcome! 

 

1.7 Officer services  

Police Officers are stationed throughout the course in specific locations according to the safety demand 
and traffic flow through their jurisdiction.  

1.8 Traffic Impact 

We anticipate 300 teams to register for this year’s event.  That means no more than 300 runners will be 
on the racecourse at any given time.  Teams will be provided with staggered start times, one hour apart 
from 5:00AM to 2:00PM. Because start times are spread over a nine-hour period and only 300 runners 
are on the course at any given time, there will never be a large group of runners at any one location.  
Typically, the complete group of 300 individual runners will be spread out over 20 miles so groups of 8-
10 runners at a time are the most concentrated our race becomes.  



1.9 Road/Lane Closures:  

No street closures will be necessary for runners. All runners are instructed to stay on the sidewalks/trails 
and follow all traffic signals and directions at all times.   

1.10 Inclement Weather Plan 

 
The race will occur rain or shine. However, under certain severe weather conditions where significant 
modification to the race course may be necessary, we will cancel the event. Conditions that may result 
in a race being canceled or delayed include but are not limited to the following: severe electrical storm, 
snowfall, tornadoes, earthquakes, hurricanes, flooding, fog, etc.  

Lightning  

If there is lightning at the start of the race, we will delay starts until the lightning clears. If runners see 
lightning on the course after the race has started, runners are to get off the road and into the support 
vehicle. If lightning clears within 1 hour runner will go back on the road where they left and make a note 
of the time. If lightning persists longer than an hour, runners will move ahead to the next exchange and 
be informed of Ragnar decision on whether or not the race will continue.  

Flooding 

If a runner encounters flooded areas that cannot be ran through, runner are to get into the support 
vehicle, drive the runner ahead where the road is no longer flooded to continue running his or her leg.  

1.11 Signage Plan 

Along the course there will be course directional signs that communicate to the runners which direction 
to go, on what side of the road to run, which exchange they are at, etc. An example of such a sign can be 
seen in the picture below. The signs are 42” High, 18” Wide, .25” thick and are made of corrugated 
plastic.  Each sign will be secured to a delineator post barricade.   

                                                                         

                                                                 DIRECTIONAL SIGNS 

 



 








	Agenda 3-06-23
	1 -  PB minutes 2-06-23
	2 - Emma Loves Dogs
	3 - Hometown Celebration
	4 - Diamond Softball
	5 - Ragnar Run 2023
	6 - Nixon Construction



